DACORUM BOROUGH COUNCIL AUDIT COMMITTEE MINUTES 12 SEPTEMBER 2018

Present:

Councillors: Taylor (Chairman) McLean

Douris Silwal

Also Attended: Councillor Elliot, Portfolio Holder for Finance & Resources.

Officers: J Deane Corporate Director (Finance and Operations)

N Howcutt Assistant Director (Finance & Resources)

K Soley (Communications & Consultation Team Leader)

J Doyle Group Manager (Democratic Services)

Others: M Towler Mazars

S Ironmonger Grant Thornton A Conlan Grant Thornton

The meeting began at 7.30 pm

67. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors Birnie and Tindall.

68. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

69. MINUTES AND ACTIONS (Agenda Item 3)

The minutes of the meeting held on 25 July 2018 were agreed by the members present and signed by the Chairman. There were no action points to consider. Councillors Douris and Taylor requested that any future record of 'action points' should be reported in the same style as that being used for the Finance and Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee.

70. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION (Agenda Item 4)

None.

71. STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER – QUARTER 1 (Agenda Item 5)

J Deane, Corporate Director (Finance and Operations) introduced the item, saying there were no significant changes to the risk scores to be reported and that the document had been checked and signed-off by the Leadership Team. The revised Risk Register is due to be considered at the next meeting of the Cabinet (18 Sept).

Cllr Silwall clarified the risk scoring system being adopted and confirmed that it is not changing in the revised version being considered at Cabinet.

72. LOCAL GOVERNMENT OMBUDSMAN - ANNUAL REVIEW LETTER 2018 (Agenda Item 6)

N Howcutt; Assistant Director (Finance & Resources) took the committee through the various elements of the report and suggested conclusions to be drawn from it.

He pointed out that the vast majority of the complaints to the Ombudsman had resulted in decisions in the Council's favour. He stressed that this is a good result. However, two complaints had resulted in the Ombudsman making recommendations for action to be taken by the Council. NH outlined the complaints and advised that they are seen as lessons learned. The actually involved time taken to respond to complaints and not the subject matter of the complaint. He advised that since they occurred we have updated our procedures and officers now received reminders to ensure that all deadlines are met.

S Ironmonger of Grant Thornton was asked for her opinion and she advised that highlighting delays in addressing complaints is part of the Ombudsman methodology, the council needs to take heed of comments made and use them as an opportunity to learn; but DBC should keep this in perspective, as two slight negatives out of 36 complaints received is not a significant number.

Councillor Douris was advised that a reply to the MP was one of the delayed responses and that these are now being dealt with using the same improved reminder process as other complaints.

Councillor McLean was anxious to know if the finding against DBC could result in a fine. NH advised that no fine is suggested as yet and that he would advise the committee if one was imposed.

Cllr Douris pointed out that he expected to see a report on our responses to Freedom of Information requests and Cllr Taylor advised that he would speak to Cllr Tindall who is also expecting an update.

73. AUDIT OPINION /ANNUAL REPORT 2017/18 UPDATE (Agenda Item 7)

S Ironmonger of Grant Thornton updated the committee on the current position. She confirmed the unqualified opinion on the 2017/18 accounts as set out in the executive summary.

She then went on to outline the progress with the 2018/19 Accounts and drew attention to the deliverables and timescales set out in page seven of the report.

There was a short discussion on the sector update; and the Herts CC and other Herts' councils possible bid for the handling of business rates.

74. INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT (Agenda Item 8)

The Internal Auditor, M Towler of Mazars, introduced the second report of the year. In their opinion, good progress is being made through the various audits; two reports have been finalised so far; and all undertakings have been met. As far as the follow-ups are concerned there are two outstanding from the 17/18 audit year and these will be dealt with in the agenda for this meeting.

75 INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE REPORTS (Agenda Item 9)

The committee considered the Mazars report on the audit of **General Data Protection Regulations**

(Evaluation assurance: **Substantial**. Testing assurance: **Substantial**).

The audit raised two Priority 2 recommendations and one priority 3 recommendation as follows:

Recommendation 1: Framework to be implemented for conducting Privacy Impact Assessments in line with the guidance on such processes contained in GDPR (Priority 2).

Recommendation 2: All staff to complete GDPR mandatory training (Priority 2)

Recommendation 3: Incident Management Policy to be updated with a workflow document (Priority 3)

The committee took into account the responses of J Worts, Information Security Team Leader to the recommendations and circulated with the agenda.

Cllr Taylor expressed regret that no full record had been kept of the names and number of staff who had attended the staff training at Cupid Green, but assured the committee that the attendance had been good and all staff were aware that their attendance is mandatory.

He then went on to lead a discussion on the provision of training for Councillors, stressing that they should be treated the same as staff and attendance at training should be mandatory. Cllr Douris wanted the Member training to be 'obligatory'.

MT advised that he has found no evidence that member training is mandatory in any of the authorities he examined. However he stressed that it is a 'must' that anyone who has access to and handles data must undergo some form of training. In his opinion the Information Commissioner would expect this as a minimum.

JD confirmed that 400 of the council's 490 staff have been trained, though some training attendance had not been recorded. He advised the committee that a revised 'flow-chart' had been produced in response to recommendation 3 and the process examined and reduced to three simple steps.

Cllr McLean wanted to know what DBCs position would be if our IT was 'hacked'? Would we be liable; could we be fined; and is there a budget to deal with such a contingency. Both J Deane and the auditors pointed out that in such a case we would have to evidence that we had taken all reasonable steps to avoid such an incident and have policies and procedures in place to mitigate the effects of any error. All large organisations are being very careful and doing all they can to protect data and DBC are doing all we can to protect our residents data as we do not wish to fall foul of the Information Commissioners Office. Cllr McLean was reassured by the fact that we had an officer designated to monitor the Council's GDPR arrangements.

The committee considered the Mazars report on the audit of **Social Media**

(Evaluation assurance: Full. Testing assurance: Substantial).

The audit raised two Priority 3 recommendations as follows:

Recommendation 1: The responsibility for providing training on Social Media should be formally assigned (Priority 3); and

Recommendation 2: The Social Media training process should be formalised and updated when necessary to take into account developments in Social Media (Priority 3)

The audit was introduced by MT who went through the recommendations and his dealings with the Communications section.

Cllr McLean asked who responds on the council's behalf to social media postings: is it an individual or a group. His concern was that an errant individual might damage the council's reputation with an inappropriate post. K Soley, Communications & Consultation Team Leader, advised the committee that in general, individual staff members have the potential to respond though the monitoring software used at Dacorum prevents council systems being abused or used as a means of abusing others.

76. AUDIT COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME (Agenda Item 10)

The committee considered the work programme for 2018/19.

The committee noted that the Revised Risk Register would be considered at Cabinet on 18 Sept and that they would be made aware of any revisions at a future meeting.

Resolved: That the work programme for 2018/19 be agreed.

The meeting ended at 20.10 pm.